
Impeachment Case Against Judge Beryl 

Howell: A Detailed Examination 

Introduction 

Federal judges hold significant power in the judicial system, entrusted with upholding the 

Constitution and ensuring the fair administration of justice. However, when a judge acts with 

bias, prejudice, or engages in misconduct, they can undermine the very foundation of the legal 

system. This document outlines the case for the impeachment of Judge Beryl Howell, focusing 

on her actions related to January 6th defendants, her communications with members of Congress, 

her apparent predisposition to view these cases through a politically biased lens, her egregious 

handling of document production in the Trump investigation, her improper use of judicial notice 

of biased media, her consistent application of improper sentences and legal errors in January 6th 

trials, potential violations of U.S.C. Title 18, Section 242, and her refusal to apply consistent 

legal standards across cases. 

1. Judge Beryl Howell’s Overturning of Defendants’ Bonds

1.1. Context and Overview 

• Initial Bond Decisions: In at least twelve different instances, federal judges outside of

Washington, D.C., granted bond to January 6th defendants, determining that they did not

pose a sufficient flight risk or danger to the community to warrant pretrial detention.

• Howell’s Overturning of Bond Decisions: Judge Howell systematically overturned

these bond decisions, ordering the defendants to be detained in Washington, D.C.,

pending trial. This pattern of behavior suggests a predisposition to treat these defendants

more harshly than other federal judges deemed necessary.

1.2. Legal and Ethical Concerns 

• Judicial Misconduct: The consistent overruling of bond decisions made by other judges

raises serious questions about Howell’s impartiality and respect for judicial

independence. Her actions suggest a potential bias against the defendants, influenced by

external pressures or her personal views on the January 6th events.

• Violation of Due Process: By denying defendants the right to bond after it was granted

by other judges, Howell may have violated their Fifth Amendment rights to due process.

This overreach can be viewed as a form of judicial tyranny, where a judge imposes

personal beliefs over legal standards and precedent.

1.3. Prejudicial Statements and Bias 

• Statements Indicating Bias: Judge Howell has made public statements that reflect a

prejudicial view of the January 6th defendants. She has referred to these events as the



 

"crime of the century" and indicated that the government was too lenient in charging 

defendants with only misdemeanors. 

• Impact on Judicial Fairness: Such statements are deeply problematic for a judge who is 

supposed to remain impartial. Howell’s remarks suggest that she had a predetermined 

notion of guilt and severity, regardless of the specific facts of each case. This bias 

undermines the defendants' right to a fair trial and suggests that her rulings may have 

been influenced by personal or political considerations. 

2. Communications with Members of Congress 

2.1. Potential Unlawful Collaboration 

• Improper Communications: There is concern that Judge Howell may have engaged in 

improper communications with members of Congress regarding the handling of January 

6th cases. If such communications took place, they would constitute a serious breach of 

judicial ethics, as judges are prohibited from discussing pending cases with legislators or 

any outside parties. 

• Legal Implications: If Howell's decisions were influenced by communications with 

Congress, this would not only violate the separation of powers but could also be grounds 

for impeachment under Article II, Section 4 of the U.S. Constitution, which provides for 

the removal of federal officers for "Treason, Bribery, or other high Crimes and 

Misdemeanors." 

2.2. House Judiciary Committee Investigation 

• Oversight Role: The House Judiciary Committee has the authority to investigate 

allegations of judicial misconduct, including potential communication between Judge 

Howell and members of Congress. The Committee could subpoena records, emails, and 

testimony to determine whether such communications took place and what influence they 

may have had on Howell’s rulings. 

• Impeachment Proceedings: If evidence of improper communication is found, the House 

Judiciary Committee could initiate impeachment proceedings against Judge Howell. The 

grounds for impeachment would include undermining the independence of the judiciary 

and violating the due process rights of the defendants. 

3. Pattern of Prejudice and Predisposition 

3.1. Statements Indicating Bias 

• Public Remarks: Judge Howell’s statements that the government was "doing 

misdemeanors for the crime of the century" indicate a clear bias. This comment reflects a 

predisposition to treat January 6th defendants with extreme severity, irrespective of the 

actual charges or individual circumstances. 

• Impact on Judicial Decisions: Such statements create a reasonable perception that Judge 

Howell cannot be impartial in these cases. Her view that the charges were insufficient 



 

suggests she may have been more inclined to impose harsher penalties or interpret the 

law in a way that unfairly disadvantages the defendants. 

3.2. Violation of Judicial Ethics 

• Code of Conduct for United States Judges: Canon 2 of the Code of Conduct for United 

States Judges requires judges to avoid impropriety and the appearance of impropriety in 

all activities. Canon 3 requires judges to perform their duties impartially and diligently. 

Howell’s public statements and actions raise serious questions about her compliance with 

these ethical standards. 

• Impact on Judicial Integrity: The integrity of the judiciary depends on the perception 

and reality of impartiality. Howell’s actions and statements may have irreparably 

damaged her credibility as a fair and unbiased judge, warranting her removal from the 

bench. 

4. Egregious Document Production in the Trump 

Investigation 

4.1. Background 

• Trump Investigation: As Chief Judge of the U.S. District Court for the District of 

Columbia, Beryl Howell presided over several key aspects of the investigation into 

former President Donald Trump. This included overseeing the handling of document 

production and other evidence-related matters. 

• Document Production: Judge Howell’s decisions regarding the production of documents 

to Congress, particularly in the context of the Trump investigation, were notably 

controversial. She ordered the production of documents that many argued were protected 

by executive privilege and other legal protections. 

4.2. Appellate Court Criticism 

• Appellate Reversal: The U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit 

criticized Judge Howell’s decisions in this matter, finding that her orders were overly 

broad and failed to adequately protect privileged information. The appellate court 

essentially "slammed" her for making rulings that disregarded well-established legal 

principles regarding executive privilege and the confidentiality of certain 

communications. 

• Legal and Ethical Concerns: The appellate court’s harsh critique of Howell’s rulings 

raises serious concerns about her ability to apply the law impartially and with due regard 

for constitutional protections. Her eagerness to facilitate the production of documents to 

Congress, despite significant legal objections, suggests a potential bias or willingness to 

support politically motivated investigations at the expense of legal norms. 

4.3. Implications for Judicial Conduct 



 

• Undermining Judicial Independence: Howell’s handling of document production in the 

Trump investigation could be seen as an attempt to align the judiciary with partisan 

interests, undermining the independence of the judiciary. This behavior is inconsistent 

with the role of a federal judge and raises questions about her fitness to continue serving 

on the bench. 

• Grounds for Impeachment: The appellate court’s criticism, combined with Howell’s 

broader pattern of prejudicial conduct, strengthens the case for impeachment. Her actions 

in the Trump investigation demonstrate a disregard for legal standards and judicial 

independence, further justifying her removal from office. 

5. Improper Judicial Notice of Biased Media and Reports 

5.1. What is Judicial Notice? 

• Definition and Purpose: Judicial notice is a rule in the law of evidence that allows a fact 

to be introduced into evidence if the truth of that fact is so notorious or well known that it 

cannot be reasonably doubted. Judicial notice should be taken only of facts that are 

beyond dispute and not subject to reasonable debate. 

• Legal Standards: Federal Rule of Evidence 201 governs judicial notice, specifying that a 

judge may only take notice of facts that are either generally known within the jurisdiction 

or can be accurately and readily determined from sources whose accuracy cannot 

reasonably be questioned. 

5.2. Howell’s Misuse of Judicial Notice 

• Improper Reliance on Biased Sources: Judge Howell has been criticized for taking 

judicial notice of media reports and other sources that were biased or otherwise 

unreliable. In cases related to January 6th, she has referenced media portrayals that were 

politically charged and lacked objectivity. 

• Impact on Fairness: By relying on biased media reports, Howell may have allowed 

external narratives to influence her judicial decisions. This improper use of judicial notice 

undermines the fairness of the proceedings, as defendants were prejudiced by the 

introduction of disputed or partisan information as established fact. 

5.3. Legal and Ethical Violations 

• Violation of Federal Rule of Evidence 201: Howell’s use of judicial notice in 

referencing biased media sources likely violated the strict requirements of Federal Rule 

of Evidence 201. This rule mandates that judicial notice be used cautiously and only for 

facts that are indisputable. Howell’s reliance on controversial and disputed media reports 

does not meet this standard. 

• Judicial Misconduct: The improper use of judicial notice reflects a broader pattern of 

bias and misconduct. Howell’s actions demonstrate a lack of commitment to impartiality, 

as she allowed her rulings to be influenced by external, partisan sources rather than 

basing them solely on the evidence presented in court. 



 

5.4. Implications for Judicial Integrity 

• Compromise of Judicial Integrity: The improper use of judicial notice further erodes 

public confidence in Judge Howell's ability to preside impartially. This behavior 

underscores a pattern of conduct that is inconsistent with the ethical obligations of a 

federal judge, contributing to the argument for her removal from the bench. 

6. Improper Sentences and Misapplication of 18 U.S.C. § 

1512 Obstruction Charges 

6.1. Improper Sentences in January 6th Cases 

• Sentencing Discrepancies: Under Judge Howell’s leadership, many January 6th 

defendants received sentences that far exceeded those typically imposed for similar 

offenses. These sentences often reflected a punitive approach rather than one grounded in 

the facts of each case. 

• Use of Sentencing Enhancements: Howell consistently applied sentencing 

enhancements that were not warranted by the circumstances. These enhancements often 

resulted in disproportionately severe penalties, raising concerns about her impartiality 

and commitment to just sentencing practices. 

6.2. Misapplication of 18 U.S.C. § 1512 Obstruction Charges 

• Broad Application of 1512: Howell has been criticized for her broad application of 18 

U.S.C. § 1512, the obstruction of an official proceeding statute. This charge, which 

carries significant penalties, was applied to many January 6th defendants in cases where 

the legal basis for such a charge was questionable. 

• Legal Errors: The misapplication of this statute under Howell’s leadership has led to 

numerous legal challenges and criticisms. The broad and often inappropriate use of this 

charge undermines the fairness of the judicial process and has been a point of contention 

in appellate reviews. 

• Precedential Concerns: The frequent and questionable use of § 1512 by Judge Howell 

has set a concerning precedent for future cases, potentially expanding the reach of this 

statute beyond its intended scope and eroding the principle of fair notice in criminal law. 

6.3. Consistent Errors in Legal Judgment 

• Pattern of Misjudgment: Howell’s leadership during the January 6th trials has been 

marked by consistent errors in legal judgment. Her rulings have frequently been 

overturned or criticized by appellate courts, reflecting a pattern of legal misinterpretation 

and overreach. 

• Impact on Defendants: The consequences of Howell’s legal errors have been severe for 

the defendants involved, many of whom have faced excessive sentences and charges that 

were not appropriately grounded in the law. This pattern of conduct raises serious 

concerns about her fitness to continue serving as a federal judge. 



 

7. Creation of a New Legal Standard for January 6th 

Defendants 

7.1. Refusal to Consider Comparable Cases 

• Selective Legal Standards: Judge Howell has consistently refused to consider 

comparable cases outside of those related to January 6th when determining sentences for 

defendants. This refusal effectively creates a new, harsher legal standard specifically for 

January 6th defendants, treating them as a distinct group subject to more severe penalties. 

• Inconsistent Application of Justice: By creating a separate legal standard for this group, 

Howell has violated the principle of equal protection under the law. The Constitution 

requires that all individuals be treated equally in the eyes of the law, regardless of their 

political beliefs or actions. Howell’s conduct suggests a deliberate departure from this 

constitutional mandate. 

7.2. Discriminatory Treatment of a Class of Defendants 

• Violation of Equal Protection: The differential treatment of January 6th defendants 

under Howell’s rulings raises serious concerns about violations of the Equal Protection 

Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment. Treating a group or class of defendants differently 

based solely on the political context of their actions is unconstitutional and undermines 

the legitimacy of the judicial process. 

• Impact on Public Confidence: The creation of a new legal standard for a specific group 

of defendants erodes public trust in the judiciary. It suggests that the courts are being 

used as a tool for political retribution rather than as a forum for impartial justice. 

7.3. Grounds for Removal 

• Protecting the Public from Judicial Impropriety: Judge Howell’s refusal to apply 

consistent legal standards across cases and her creation of a new legal framework for 

January 6th defendants present clear grounds for her removal. Her actions demonstrate a 

willingness to compromise constitutional principles in favor of personal or political 

biases, making her continued service as a federal judge untenable. 

• Partisanship and Judicial Conduct: The partisanship that has gripped Howell’s judicial 

decisions cannot be overlooked. Her conduct reflects a departure from the impartiality 

required of a federal judge, and her removal is necessary to restore confidence in the 

judiciary. 

8. U.S.C. Title 18, Section 242: Deprivation of Rights Under 

Color of Law 

8.1. Overview of U.S.C. Title 18, Section 242 



 

• Legal Definition: U.S.C. Title 18, Section 242 makes it a crime for any person acting 

under color of law to willfully deprive someone of their constitutional rights. This statute 

is often applied in cases where law enforcement or government officials abuse their 

power to violate the rights of individuals. 

• Application to Judiciary: While the primary focus of Section 242 is on law 

enforcement, it can also apply to judicial officers who abuse their authority in ways that 

deprive individuals of their constitutional rights. 

8.2. How Judge Howell’s Conduct May Violate Section 242 

• Deprivation of Due Process: Howell’s actions in consistently overturning bond 

decisions, imposing improper sentences, and applying legal standards selectively may 

constitute a deprivation of due process rights. Her decisions have often been guided by 

bias and a predetermined narrative rather than the facts of each case. 

• Equal Protection Violations: The creation of a separate legal standard for January 6th 

defendants and the differential treatment of this group could be seen as a violation of the 

Equal Protection Clause, further supporting the argument that Howell’s conduct ventures 

into the territory covered by Section 242. 

8.3. Implications for Judicial Accountability 

• Not the Role of Congress, But Relevant: While it is not the direct role of Congress to 

prosecute violations of Section 242, the conduct of Judge Howell undoubtedly raises 

questions about whether she has deprived defendants of their constitutional rights under 

the color of law. This conduct is highly relevant in considering whether she should 

remain on the bench. 

• Grounds for Impeachment: The potential violation of Section 242 strengthens the case 

for Howell’s removal. If her actions have indeed deprived individuals of their 

constitutional rights, this would constitute "high Crimes and Misdemeanors" under the 

Constitution, justifying impeachment. 

9. Conclusion 

The case for the impeachment of Judge Beryl Howell is grounded in her repeated actions that 

demonstrate bias, overreach, and potential misconduct. By overturning bond decisions made by 

other judges, making prejudicial public statements, improperly handling document production in 

the Trump investigation, misusing judicial notice of biased media, consistently imposing 

improper sentences, misapplying 18 U.S.C. § 1512 obstruction charges, creating a new legal 

standard for January 6th defendants, and potentially violating U.S.C. Title 18, Section 242, 

Howell has compromised her ability to serve as an impartial arbiter of justice. These actions not 

only violate the rights of defendants but also undermine public confidence in the judiciary. The 

House Judiciary Committee must investigate these matters thoroughly and, if the evidence 

supports it, initiate impeachment proceedings to hold Judge Howell accountable and protect the 

integrity of the federal judiciary. 
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